
Sports Facility Development Corporation Meeting – November 13, 2023   Page 1 of 2 

 

 

SPORTS FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

MEETING 

CITY HALL E. CONFERENCE ROOM C, CITY HALL, 300 W. MAIN ST. 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Minutes from August 14, 2023  

2. Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for July through September 2023  

3. Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

4. Construction Committee Report 

5. Finance Committee Report 

6. Committee Assignments  

7. Sports Corp. Meeting Schedule 2024 

8. Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023  

9. Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 2023 LSP Update on the 

Thoroughbred Racing Season 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Sports Facility Development Corporation may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

ADJOURNMENT 

Certification 

1



Sports Facility Development Corporation Meeting – November 13, 2023   Page 2 of 2 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Sports Facility 

Development Corporation agenda was prepared and posted November 10, 2023. 

 

Lee Harris, CPA 

Special District Administrator, Finance Department 

 

2



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Tina Alvarez 

PRESENTER: Ron Jensen, President 

TITLE: Minutes from August 14, 2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Minutes from August 14, 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

3

Item 1.



 

Page 1 of 3  

 SPORTS FACILITY DEVELOPMENT  

CORPORATION MEETING 

CITY HALL E. CONFERENCE ROOM C, CITY HALL 

300 W. MAIN ST.  

MONDAY, AUGUST 14, 2023, AT 6:00 PM 
 

 

MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

A regular meeting of the Grand Prairie Sports Facilities Development Corporation was called to 

order by President Ron Jensen at 6:00 PM. 

 

 

Members Present Staff Present 

Ron Jensen, President Cheryl De Leon, Deputy City Manager 

Jorja Clemson, Vice President Cathy Patrick, Chief Financial Officer 

R. J. Garcia Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

Mike Skinner                                                   Tina Alvarez, Assistant Secretary 

Junior Ezeonu 

John Stewart                                                     

 Guests 

Members Absent Present Melinda Gonzalez, Vice President of      

 Mike Del Bosque                                            Operations, Lone Star Park 

 Shelly Wimberly 

                                                                        Tiffany Bull, Assistant City Attorney 

   

AGENDA ITEMS 

 

1. Minutes from May 15, 2023 

Mike Skinner moved to approve May 15, 2023, minutes, as presented. Vice President, Jorja 

Clemson seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0., with no abstentions. 

Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Skinner, Garcia, Stewart, Ezeonu 

         Nays: None 

Abstentions: None 

Absent: Del Bosque 

 

2.  Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for April through June 2023.  

Ms. Lee Harriss reviewed the Monthly Financial and Investment Report for April through 

June 2023.  

April Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $8,178.00. Interest earnings for 

the month were $21,973.00 for total receipts of $191,402.00. Disbursements for the month 

were $2,936.00. The net increase in cash and investments was $188,466.00. The Sports 

Corporation had total cash Investments of $13,669,846.00. 

 

The May Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $25,491.00. Interest 

earnings for the month were $44,350.00 for total receipts of $231,092.00. Disbursements for 

the month were $34,801.00. The net increase in cash and investments was $196,291.00. The 

4

Item 1.



 

Page 2 of 3  

Sports Corporation had total cash Investments of $13,866,137.00. 

 

June Base rent was $161,251.00, and additional rent totaled $37,777.00. Interest earnings 

for the month were $38,611.00 for total receipts of $237,639.00. Disbursements for the 

month were $3,045.00. The net increase in cash and investments was $234,594.00. The 

Sports Corporation had total cash Investments of $14,100,731.00. 

 

Vice President Jorja Clemson moved to accept the financial report as presented. Junior 

Ezeonu seconded the motion. The motion carried 6-0, with no abstentions. 

Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Skinner, Garcia, Stewart, Ezeonu 

Nays: None 

Abstentions: None 

Absent: Del Bosque 

 

3. Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

    Mike Skinner stated that there was no report to present. 

 

4. Construction Committee Report 

      R. J. Garcia, Secretary stated that there was no report to present. 

 

5. Finance Committee Report 

      none 

 

6. Reimbursement to the City for April 1, 2023, through June 30, 2023 

Vice President, Jorja Clemson moved to approve the motion. R.J. Garcia seconded the 

motion. The motion carried 6-0, with no abstentions. 

 Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Skinner, Garcia, Stewart, Ezeonu 

Nays: None 

   Absent: Del Bosque 

 

7.  Election of Officers and Committee Assignments 

           President, Ron Jensen appointed R.J. Garcia as Secretary to replace Eddie Freeman. 

President Ron Jensen moved to approve item 7, as presented. John Stewart seconded the     

motion. The motion carried 6-0, with no abstentions.     

           Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Skinner, Garcia, Stewart, Ezeonu  

            Nays: None 

           Abstentions: None 

           Absent: Del Bosque 

 

8.  Resolution approving the proposed budget for FY 2023-2024 and amending the FY 2022-

2023 budget. 
 Treasurer, Lee Harriss presented information for Item 8 and amending of FY2022-2023 

budget. R.J. Garcia moved to approve, Junior Ezeonu seconded the motion. The motion 

carried 6-0, with no abstentions. 

Ayes: Jensen, Clemson, Skinner, Garcia, Ezeonu, Stewart. 

Nays: None 

Abstentions: None 

Absent: Del Bosque 

 

5

Item 1.



 

Page 3 of 3  

 

 

9.  Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 Capital Expenditures and 2023 LSP Update on the 

Thoroughbred Racing Season 

 

Vice President, Merlinda Gonzalez presented 2023 LSP Update on the Thoroughbred 

Racing Season. July 03,2023-July 04,2023 had a record attendance of 20,000.00 people. 

July was also busy with Cricket; they utilized our lots. 

 

 

 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

President Ron Jensen acknowledged that there were no citizens present. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Sports Facility Development Corporation may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 

551, Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1) Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)  Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)  Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development 

 

No Executive Session was held. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, President Ron Jensen adjourned the meeting at 6:44 PM.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________  ___________________________ 

R.J. Garcia, Secretary                              Date 
 

6

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for July through September 

2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Monthly Financial and Investment Reports for July through September 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Mike Skinner 

TITLE: Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Contract Negotiations Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22

Item 3.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: R.J. Garcia 

TITLE: Construction Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Construction Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23

Item 4.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Jorja Clemson, Finance Committee 

TITLE: Finance Committee Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Finance Committee Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

Item 5.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Ron Jensen, President 

TITLE: Committee Assignments  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Committee assignments are needed to fill positions on the existing Sports Corporation Committees. The 

current committee assignments are as follows: 

 

Finance Committee 

Vacant, Chair 

Jorja Clemson 

 

Contract Negotiation Committee 

Mike Skinner, Chair  

Vacant 

 

Construction Committee 

R J Garcia, Chair 

Mike Skinner 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

Item 6.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26

Item 6.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Sports Corp. Meeting Schedule 2024 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The Sports Corp. normally meets on Monday in the third week of February, May, August, and 

November.  The proposed schedule for 2024 is below: 

February 19, 2024 

May 20, 2024 

August 19, 2024 

November 18, 2024 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27

Item 7.



2024 COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

January 9 & 23 

February 6 & 20 

March 5 & 19 

April 2 & 16 

May 7 & 21 

June 4 & 18 

July 16 

August 6 & 20 

September 3 & 17 

October 15 

November 5 & 19 

December 17 

 

Adopted at the 9/5/23 Council Meeting. 

28

Item 7.



GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

PROPOSED 2024 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

Quarterly Format 

February 19, 2024 

May 20, 2024 

August 19, 2024 

November 18, 2024 

29

Item 7.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Lee Harriss, Treasurer 

TITLE: Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2023 through September 30, 

2023  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Attached is the billing from the City. The total amount of the reimbursement is $1,885.56.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30

Item 8.



Invoice Date 9/30/2023

Invoice No. LSP45199

Reimbursible Costs Incurred on Behalf of the Sports Corp.:

7/11/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 110.12                  

8/8/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 110.75                  

9/11/23 Wells Fargo Bank Analysis Fees 124.69                  

9/30/23 Staff Time July 2023 - Sept. 2023 1,540.00               

Total Due 1,885.56$             

11/4/2023

7:44 PM R:\Sports Corp\Billing\23 09-30-23 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement   
31

Item 8.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
GRAND PRAIRIE SPORTS 

FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/13/2023 

REQUESTER: Lee Harriss 

PRESENTER: Merlinda Gonzalez 

TITLE: Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 

2023 LSP Update on the Thoroughbred Racing Season 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 capital expenditures and 2023 LSP update on the 

thoroughbred racing season   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

32

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes 8/14/23
	01 08-14-23 - Minutes Communication Form
	Minutes for Sports Corp Meeting 08.14.23

	Item 2.	Financial Reports
	02 Monthly Financial and Investment Reports 
	23-12 Monthly Financial and Investment Reports FY23 July - Sept 2023

	Item 3.	03 Contract Negotiations Committee Report
	03 Contract Negotiations Committee Report

	Item 4.	04 Construction Committee Report
	04 Construction Committee Report

	Item 5.	05 Finance Committee Report
	05 Finance Committee Report

	Item 6.	06 Committee Assignments
	06 Committee Assignments

	Item 7.	07 Sports Corp. Meeting Schedule 2024
	07 Meeting Schedule
	07 2024 COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE
	07 2024 PROPOSED SPORTS CORP. BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE

	Item 8.	08 Reimbursement to the City for July 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023
	08 Reimbursement to the City
	23 09-30-23 Racetrackbilling-City Reimbursement

	Item 9.	09 Lone Star Park Briefing on 2023 and 2024 Capital Expenditures and 2023 LSP Update on the Thoroughbred Racing Season
	09 Lone Star Park Report

	Bottom

